
AGENDA 
SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

January 14, 2026 
 

1.  Call to Order 
2.  Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Approval of Minutes of December 10, 2025 
4.  Correspondence 
5.  Public Comments, Audience Members are allowed 3 minutes to discuss items not on 

the Agenda (5 minutes for groups) 
6.  Approval of Agenda 

 
7.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS        

A) Affordable Housing Updates  
B) Short Term Rental Updates 

a. Granicus 
b. Inspections 

C)   
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
A) Resolution 26-01 to Rezone PUD Lighthouse Apartments 
B) Resolution 26-02 Poverty Exemption  
C) Resolution 26-03 Budget Amendment Resolutions 
D) Planning Commission Recommendation for Special Land Use 
E)  
 

9. REPORTS 
Airport 
Building/Electrical/Mechanical 
Building Committee  
Fire/Ambulance 
Library 
Park Committee  
Planning Commission 
Roads 
Senior Services 
Water/Sewer Authority 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

10. TREASURER’S REPORT 

11. BOARD COMMENTS  

12. ADJOURNMENT  

 



SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2025 

 

Present:  Stein, Bertorelli, Poole, Lewandowski, Wiatrowski, DeGrandchamp and 

Fisher 

Absent:  None 

 

Meeting was called to order by Supervisor Stein at 7:30 p.m.  

Motion by Wiatrowski, supported by DeGrandchamp, to approve the Minutes of 

the November 12, 2025 Regular Meeting as presented.  All voted in favor.  Motion 

carried. 

Zach Kenreich was in attendance and gave a report for SHAES.  Kenny Clevenger, 

a candidate for State Representative introduced himself. 

Motion by DeGrandchamp, supported by Lewandowski, to approve the Agenda.  

All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Trustee Poole reported that the apartments on 73rd Street received their final 

approval from the Planning Commission.    Trustee Wiatrowski reported there 

were 3 STR inspections to complete. 

Motion by DeGrandchamp, supported by Wiatrowski, to approve the Board 

Meeting Schedule for 2026.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Fisher, supported by Bertorelli, to approve Jill Sanborn as Deputy 

Treasurer.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Poole, supported by Wiatrowski, to accept the Planning Commissions 

recommendation for approval of the project on 73rd Street and send the 

information to the Attorney to prepare for adoption.  All voted in favor. Motion 

carried. 

Motion by Fisher, supported by Lewandowski, to adopt Resolution 25-31 

Amending the 2025 Budget.  All voted in favor by roll call vote.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Stein, supported by Poole, to reappoint Grant Nicol to the Planning 

Commission for another term.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Stein, supported by Wiatrowski, to reappoint Lowell Tippman to 

another term as ZBA Liaison to the Planning Commission.  All voted in favor.  

Motion carried. 

Reports from various committees and authorities were received. W.C. Askew was 

in attendance for the Road Commission. 



Motion by Fisher, supported by Wiatrowski, to approve payment of anticipated 

bills in the amount of $133,174.73.  All voted in favor by roll call vote.  Motion 

carried. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:26 p.m. 

 

_________________________               ___________________________ 

Brenda Bertorelli, Clerk                            Ross Stein, Supervisor 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



Page 1 of 10 

SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

RESOLUTION NO. 26-01 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE SITE PLAN FOR THE LIGHTHOUSE RIDGE 

APARTMENTS PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AND TO INTRODUCE 

ORDINANCE NO. 172, AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE AND ZONING MAP TO ESTABLISH THE 

LIGHTHOUSE RIDGE APARTMENTS PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

At a meeting of the Township Board of South Haven Charter Township, Van Buren County, 

Michigan, held on January 14, 2026, at 7:30 p.m., at the Township Hall, 09761 Blue Star Memorial 

Highway, South Haven, MI 49090. 

PRESENT: _________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: __________________________________________________________________ 

 The following preamble and Resolution was offered by _________________ and seconded 

by _________________. 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, 2006 PA 110, the Township 

has authority to adopt and amend zoning ordinances regulating the use of land in the Township; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the Township Planning Commission held a public hearing on December 3, 

2025, on a petition to amend the South Haven Township Zoning Ordinance (the “Zoning 

Ordinance”) and rezone the following real property: 

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 1 

SOUTH, RANGE 17 WEST, SOUTH HAVEN TOWNSHIP, VAN BUREN COUNTY, 

MICHIGAN, DESCRIBED AS: BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE NORTH AND 

SOUTH QUARTER LINE OF SAID SECTION 14 THAT IS 718.58 FEET SOUTH 

00°08’30” WEST (DEEDED SOUTH) OF THE NORTH QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 

14; THENCE SOUTH 00°08’30” WEST (DEEDED SOUTH) ON SAID NORTH AND 

SOUTH QUARTER LINE 592.67 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°52’29” (DEEDED 

NORTH 89°00’59” WEST) 218.35 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 05°47’02” EAST (DEEDED 

SOUTH 05°55’32” EAST) 144.46 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°52’29” EAST (DEEDED 

SOUTH 89°00’59”) 203.43 FEET TO SAID NORTH AND SOUTH QUARTER LINE; 

THENCE SOUTH 00°08’30” WEST (DEEDED SOUTH) ON SAID NORTH AND 



Page 2 of 10 

SOUTH QUARTER LINE 66.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°52’29” WEST (DEEDED 

NORTH 89°00’59” EAST) 129.93 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 44°18’06” WEST (DEEDED 

SOUTH 04°09’39” WEST) 701.86 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 

OF MICHIGAN HIGHWAY 43; THENCE NORTH 45°01’22” WEST (DEEDED NORTH 

54°09’52” WEST) ON SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 162.84 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 48°07’46” EAST (DEEDED NORTH 47°59’16” EAST) ON SAID 

NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 20.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 44°55’06” WEST 

(DEEDED NORTH 45°03’36” WEST) ON SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 

109.73 FEET TO THE EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 

196; THENCE NORTH 20°13’38” EAST (DEEDED NORTH 20°05’08” EAST) ON 

SAID EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 1174.59 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°03’38” 

EAST (DEEDED SOUTH 89°12’08” EAST) 393.81 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. CONTAINING 13.39 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

 

Parcel ID numbers 80-17-014-039-30, 80-17-014-039-20, and 80-17-014-039-25 (the “Property”), 

from its current zoning district of Medium Density Residential (MDR) to Multiple Family 

Residential (MFR) Planned Unit Development (PUD) district as the Lighthouse Ridge Apartments 

Planned Unit Development (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, on December 3, 2025, the Township Planning Commission recommended 

approval of the Project to the Township Board with the conditions that (1) all required permits and 

approvals are obtained from the Federal, State, County, and Township governments and (2) that 

the standards of Article 16 of the Zoning Ordinance are met; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission transmitted a summary of the comments received 

prior to and during the public hearing, along with the Planning Commission’s recommendation, to 

the Van Buren County Planning Commission for review and comment; and, 

WHEREAS, the Township Board has reviewed the Project’s final site plan; and,  

WHEREAS, the Township Board wishes to introduce Ordinance No. 172, An Ordinance 

to Amend the South Haven Charter Township Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map to Establish the 

Lighthouse Ridge Apartments Planned Unit Development Project, which would rezone the 

Property as MFR PUD for the Project.  



Page 3 of 10 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Township Board of the Charter Township of South Haven 

resolves as follows: 

1. Ordinance No. 172, An Ordinance to Amend the South Haven Charter Township 

Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map to Establish the Lighthouse Ridge Apartments Planned Unit 

Development Project (the “Ordinance”), attached as Exhibit A, is introduced.  

2. The Township Board will consider adopting the Ordinance at its next regular 

meeting on February 11, 2026. 

3. Pursuant to Section 20 of the Michigan Charter Township Act, 1994 PA 82, the 

Township Clerk is directed to publish the Ordinance in accordance with Section 8 of the Act by 

posting it in the office of the Clerk and on the Township’s website. The Clerk is further directed to 

publish notice of the posting in a form in accordance with the Act in a newspaper of general 

circulation in the Township within seven (7) days after the posting. The notice must be 

substantially similar to the attached Exhibit B.  

4. The number of parking spaces required for the Lighthouse Ridge Apartments 

Planned Unit Development is reduced to 89, from the 119 required under Article XX of the South 

Haven Charter Township Zoning Ordinance, based on the traffic study provided by the applicant 

and the recommendation of the Township Planning Commission.  

5. The Lighthouse Ridge Apartments Planned Unit Development’s final site, attached 

as Exhibit C, is approved.  

6. Any resolutions or portions of resolutions that are inconsistent with this Resolution 

are repealed. 

STATE OF MICHIGAN  ) 

     ) ss. 

COUNTY OF VAN BUREN  ) 

 



Page 4 of 10 

 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of South 

Haven, Van Buren County, Michigan, CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of 

certain proceedings taken by the Township Board at a regular meeting held pursuant to the Open 

Meetings Act on January 14, 2026.  

     ______________________________________ 

     Brenda Bertorelli 

    Clerk, South Haven Charter Township 

 



Page 5 of 10 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 172 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP ZONING 

ORDINANCE AND ZONING MAP TO ESTABLISH THE LIGHTHOUSE RIDGE 

APARTMENTS PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

 

The Charter Township of South Haven ordains: 

 

Section 1. Purpose. 

 

The application received from Wallick Development (the “Developer”) for a Planned Unit 

Development designation and rezoning for the proposed Lighthouse Ridge Apartments Planned 

Unit Development Project (the “Project”) was recommended for final approval by the South Haven 

Township Planning Commission on December 3, 2025. The Project is recommended for rezoning 

from MDR, Medium Density Residential, to MFR PUD, Multiple Family Residential Planned Unit 

Development. This action requires an amendment to the South Haven Charter Township Zoning 

Ordinance and Zoning Map. 

 

Section 2. Legal Description. 

 

The legal description of the Project is as follows:  

 

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 1 

SOUTH, RANGE 17 WEST, SOUTH HAVEN TOWNSHIP, VAN BUREN COUNTY, 

MICHIGAN, DESCRIBED AS: BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE NORTH AND 

SOUTH QUARTER LINE OF SAID SECTION 14 THAT IS 718.58 FEET SOUTH 

00°08’30” WEST (DEEDED SOUTH) OF THE NORTH QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 

14; THENCE SOUTH 00°08’30” WEST (DEEDED SOUTH) ON SAID NORTH AND 

SOUTH QUARTER LINE 592.67 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°52’29” (DEEDED 

NORTH 89°00’59” WEST) 218.35 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 05°47’02” EAST (DEEDED 

SOUTH 05°55’32” EAST) 144.46 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°52’29” EAST (DEEDED 

SOUTH 89°00’59”) 203.43 FEET TO SAID NORTH AND SOUTH QUARTER LINE; 

THENCE SOUTH 00°08’30” WEST (DEEDED SOUTH) ON SAID NORTH AND 

SOUTH QUARTER LINE 66.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°52’29” WEST (DEEDED 

NORTH 89°00’59” EAST) 129.93 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 44°18’06” WEST (DEEDED 

SOUTH 04°09’39” WEST) 701.86 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 

OF MICHIGAN HIGHWAY 43; THENCE NORTH 45°01’22” WEST (DEEDED NORTH 

54°09’52” WEST) ON SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 162.84 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 48°07’46” EAST (DEEDED NORTH 47°59’16” EAST) ON SAID 

NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 20.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 44°55’06” WEST 

(DEEDED NORTH 45°03’36” WEST) ON SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 



Page 6 of 10 

109.73 FEET TO THE EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 

196; THENCE NORTH 20°13’38” EAST (DEEDED NORTH 20°05’08” EAST) ON 

SAID EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 1174.59 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°03’38” 

EAST (DEEDED SOUTH 89°12’08” EAST) 393.81 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. CONTAINING 13.39 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

 

Parcel ID numbers 80-17-014-039-30, 80-17-014-039-20, and 80-17-014-039-25. 

 

Section 3. General Provisions. 

 

The following provisions apply to the Project in addition to those provisions outlined in Article 

XVI of the South Haven Charter Township Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Section 4. Permitted Use. 

 

The Project occupies approximately 13 acres of land in the Township. The only permitted use for 

the Lighthouse Ridge Apartments PUD is a 52-unit apartment complex consisting of two 16-unit 

buildings, one 20-unit building, an office, a clubhouse, a playground, and parking.  

 

Section 5. Approval Limitations. 

 

A. The Project must be developed in accordance with the final approved site plan. 

B. The provisions of this Ordinance are not intended as a substitute for the South Haven 

Charter Township Zoning Ordinance, nor do they in any way relieve the Developer from 

obtaining all approvals and permits required by the Township. In the event that a 

development issue or site plan element is not expressly addressed by this Ordinance, the 

specifications and requirements of the South Haven Charter Township Zoning Ordinance 

apply. Furthermore, all other applicable South Haven Charter Township ordinances govern 

the Project where applicable 

C. Except as expressly otherwise provided herein, the Developer and its assigns must meet all 

applicable provisions, ordinance requirements, and regulations of South Haven Charter 

Township, as well as federal and state law, and must obtain all necessary approvals from 

state and county governmental agencies that are required for construction, operation, or 

use. 

D. This PUD approval is expressly contingent upon all conditions of approval herein 

remaining fully effective and valid. If any condition imposed herein is determined to be 

illegal or contrary to law as a result of a successful legal challenge by the Developer or its 

assigns, or any other party, the Township reserves the right to review the entire Project 

under the PUD provisions of the South Haven Charter Township Zoning Ordinance, and 

further, to withdraw its approval of this PUD if the Township finds that, absent the effect 

of any condition imposed herein, the PUD no longer meets the standards for PUD approval 

contained in the Zoning Ordinance. 



Page 7 of 10 

E. All conditions contained herein and in the final approved site plan will be incorporated into 

a Planned Unit Development Agreement that must be executed by Developer and the 

Township and which may be recorded with the Van Buren County Register of Deeds.  

F. Failure to comply with the final approved site plan or any other provision of this Ordinance 

is deemed a nuisance per se and a violation of the South Haven Charter Township Zoning 

Ordinance. 

 

Section 7. Validity and Severability. 

 

Should any portion of this Ordinance be found invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be 

construed as affecting the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 

Section 8. Repealer. 

 

Any ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed, but only to the 

extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect.  

 

Section 9. Effective Date. 

 

This Ordinance takes effect seven days after publication as provided by law. 

 

  



Page 8 of 10 

EXHIBIT B 

 

SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

 

NOTICE OF POSTING OF ORDINANCE NO. 172 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP ZONING 

ORDINANCE AND ZONING MAP TO ESTABLISH THE LIGHTHOUSE RIDGE 

APARTMENTS PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at its regular meeting on January 14, 2026, the Township Board 

of South Haven Charter Township introduced Ordinance No. 172, An Ordinance to Amend the 

South Haven Charter Township Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map to Establish the Lighthouse 

Ridge Apartments Planned Unit Development Project. The Ordinance would amend the South 

Haven Township Zoning Map to rezone the following real property from MDR, Medium Density 

Residential, to MFR PUD, Multiple Family Residential Planned Unit Development: 

 

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 1 

SOUTH, RANGE 17 WEST, SOUTH HAVEN TOWNSHIP, VAN BUREN COUNTY, 

MICHIGAN, DESCRIBED AS: BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE NORTH AND 

SOUTH QUARTER LINE OF SAID SECTION 14 THAT IS 718.58 FEET SOUTH 

00°08’30” WEST (DEEDED SOUTH) OF THE NORTH QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 

14; THENCE SOUTH 00°08’30” WEST (DEEDED SOUTH) ON SAID NORTH AND 

SOUTH QUARTER LINE 592.67 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°52’29” (DEEDED 

NORTH 89°00’59” WEST) 218.35 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 05°47’02” EAST (DEEDED 

SOUTH 05°55’32” EAST) 144.46 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°52’29” EAST (DEEDED 

SOUTH 89°00’59”) 203.43 FEET TO SAID NORTH AND SOUTH QUARTER LINE; 

THENCE SOUTH 00°08’30” WEST (DEEDED SOUTH) ON SAID NORTH AND 

SOUTH QUARTER LINE 66.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°52’29” WEST (DEEDED 

NORTH 89°00’59” EAST) 129.93 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 44°18’06” WEST (DEEDED 

SOUTH 04°09’39” WEST) 701.86 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 

OF MICHIGAN HIGHWAY 43; THENCE NORTH 45°01’22” WEST (DEEDED NORTH 

54°09’52” WEST) ON SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 162.84 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 48°07’46” EAST (DEEDED NORTH 47°59’16” EAST) ON SAID 

NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 20.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 44°55’06” WEST 

(DEEDED NORTH 45°03’36” WEST) ON SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 

109.73 FEET TO THE EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 

196; THENCE NORTH 20°13’38” EAST (DEEDED NORTH 20°05’08” EAST) ON 

SAID EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 1174.59 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°03’38” 

EAST (DEEDED SOUTH 89°12’08” EAST) 393.81 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. CONTAINING 13.39 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

 

Parcel ID numbers 80-17-014-039-30, 80-17-014-039-20, and 80-17-014-039-25. 

 

The Ordinance is available in its entirety for public inspection and is posted at the office of the 

Township Clerk, 09761 Blue Star Memorial Highway, South Haven, MI 49090, and on the 

Township’s website, SouthHavenTwp.com. Copies may be obtained for a reasonable charge. The 



Page 9 of 10 

proposed Ordinance will be considered for adoption by the Township Board at its regular meeting 

on February 11, 2026. 

 

Brenda Bertorelli, Clerk 

09761 Blue Star Memorial Highway  

South Haven, MI 49090 

(269) 637-3305 

 



Page 10 of 10 

EXHIBIT C 

 

[PUD Site Plan] 

 

 

 
 



 

 

2026 POVERTY RESOLUTION 26-02 
 

WHEREAS, the adoption of guidelines for poverty exemptions is within the purview of the Township Board, and 

 

WHEREAS, the homestead of persons who, in the judgment of the Supervisor and Board of Review, by reason of poverty, are 

unable to contribute to the public charges is eligible for exemption in whole or part from taxation under Public Act 390, 1994 (MCL 

211.7u) and as amended by PA 620 of 2002 and further amended by PA 253 of 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to PA 390, 1994, PA 620, 2002 and PA 253 of 2020, South Haven Twp, VanBuren County adopts the 

following guidelines for the Board of Review to implement.  The guidelines shall include but not be limited to the specific income 

and asset levels of the claimant and all persons residing in the household, including any property tax credit returns, filed in the 

immediately preceding year, 

 

To be eligible, a person shall meet all the following requirements: 

1)  Be an owner of and occupy as a principal residence of the property for which an exemption is requested. 

2)  File a claim with the Chairman, Assessor or Board of Review, accompanied by federal and state income tax returns       

for all persons residing in the homestead, including any property tax credit returns filed in the immediately              

preceding year UNLESS the attached affidavit is completed for each person that is not required by law to file Federal 

and/or State income tax return(s). 

3)  Produce a valid driver’s license or other form of identification. 

4)  Produce a deed, land contract, or other evidence of ownership of the property for which an exemption is required, if 

requested. 

5)  Meet the federal poverty income standards as defined and determined annually by the United States Office of 

Management and Budget (see attached). 

6)  Have assets totaling no more than the income level equal to the federal poverty guidelines for the number of individuals 

in the household, not including the primary residence and one vehicle. 

7)  The application for an exemption shall be filed after January 1, but before the day prior to the last day of Board of 

Review in the year that the exemption is being requested. 

8)  Any additional eligibility requirements allowed by law as determined by the Township Board of Review. 

 

  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Review shall follow the above stated policy and federal 

guidelines in granting or denying an exemption. 

 

The foregoing resolution offered by Board Member ______________________ and supported by Board Member  

______________________. 

 

Upon roll call vote, the following number of Board Members voted “Aye”: ___________. 

 

 

The following number of Board Members voted “Nay”: ______________. 

 

 

The Chairman declared the resolution adopted. 

 

       

CERTIFICATE 

 

I, Brenda Bertorelli, the duly elected and acting Clerk of South Haven Twp, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the 

Township Board of said Township at the regular meeting of said Board held on January 14, 2025 at which meeting a quorum was present by 

a roll call vote of said members and hereinbefore set forth; that said resolution was ordered to take immediate effect. 

 

________________________________           

 Brenda Bertorelli,  South Haven Twp Clerk 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

FEDERAL POVERTY INCOME STANDARDS FOR 2026 ASSESSMENTS 

 

The following are the federal poverty income standards as of December 31, 2025 for use in setting poverty 

exemption guidelines for 2026 assessments.  

 

 

Federal Poverty Income Guidelines 

Number of Persons Residing  Maximum Total Income 

in the Principal Residence 

1       $15,650 

2       $21,150 

3       $26,650 

4       $32,150 

5       $37,650 

6       $43,150 

7       $48,650 

8       $54,150 

Each Additional Person $5,500 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Income Guidelines 

 

The income guidelines used by the Board of Review have been established in accordance with P.A. 390 of 

1994. In determining qualifications for the exemption, the Board of Review shall consider every variable on 

the application including total household income, the nature and duration of the income stream, the current 

taxable and state equalized values of the subject property, the quality and accuracy of the information 

submitted and any other such evidence as they feel appropriate in making their decision.  These guidelines 

shall assist the Board of Review in their decisions. 

 

   2026 Poverty Income Guidelines Range for South Haven Twp 

 

Number of Persons Residing Household   Recommended Board Action 

in the Principal Residence  Income  Exemption % Percentage Granted 

  1    $0 - $15,650  Maximum 100% 

        $19,560  At this range point 75 % 

         $23,480  At this range point 50 % 

       Max $27,390  At this range point 25 %  

              

 2    $0 - $21,150  Maximum 100 % 

       $26,440  At this range point 75 % 

        $31,730  At this range point 50 % 

      Max $37,010  At this range point 25 % 

               

 3    $0 - $26,650  Maximum 100 % 

       $33,310  At this range point 75 % 

        $39,980  At this range point 50 % 

      Max $46,640  At this range point 25 %  

               

 4    $0 - $32,150  Maximum 100 % 

       $40,190  At this range point 75 % 

        $48,230  At this range point 50 % 

      Max $56,260  At this range point 25 % 

               

 5    $0 - $37,650  Maximum 100 % 

       $47,060  At this range point 75 % 

        $56,480  At this range point 50 % 

       Max $65,890  At this range point 25 %  

              

 6    $0 - $43,150  Maximum 100 % 

        $53,940  At this range point 75 % 

        $64,730  At this range point 50 % 

      Max $75,510  At this range point 25 % 

               

 7    $0 - $48,650  Maximum 100 % 

        $60,810  At this range point 75 % 

        $72,890  At this range point 50 % 

      Max $85,140  At this range point 25 %  



 

 

               

 8    $0 - $54,150  Maximum 100 % 

        $67,690  At this range point 75 % 

        $81,230  At this range point 50 % 

      Max $94,760  At this range point 25 % 

     Each Additional Person $ 5,500      

 

Assets (not including the primary residence) shall not exceed $15,000 

 



 

 

2026 Poverty Exemption Application Instructions 
 

THIS APPLICATION SHOULD BE RETURNED TO: 
 

Mailing Address & Building Location: 
South Haven Twp, 09761 Blue Star Hwy, South Haven, MI 49090 

 

South Haven Twp 
www.SouthHavenTwp.com 

 
 

 To be considered for a hardship exemption, the following steps must be followed: 

1.  The Petitioners must complete this application IN FULL including signatures on the last page.  

Return the application and attachments to the Assessing 

Department after January 1, but before the day prior to the last day of Board of Review in the year that 

the exemption is being requested. 

2.  Per South Haven Twp’s  Poverty Resolution, you must attach signed copies of the following for  

all persons living in the household: 

__ 2025 FEDERAL INCOME TAX RETURN (1040) with W 2’s & 1099’s. 

__ 2025 MICHIGAN INCOME TAX RETURN (MI-1040) 

__ 2025 HOMESTEAD PROPERTY TAX CREDIT FORM (MI-1040CR) 

__ 2025 SOCIAL SECURITY BENEFIT STATEMENT (SSA-1099) 

__ YEAR END STATEMENTS FOR ASSET INFORMATION 

 

IF YOU ARE NOT REQUIRED, BY LAW, TO FILE OR STATE INCOME TAX FORMS, YOU 

MUST COMPLETE THE ATTACHED POVERTY EXEMPTION AFFIDAVIT. 

 

Hardship Exemption as defined by the Michigan Complied Laws is as follows: 

Section 211.7u: The homestead of persons who, in the judgment of the supervisor and 

Board of Review, by reason of poverty, are unable to contribute toward the public 

charges are eligible in whole or in part from taxation under this act. 

Please be aware that as an applicant for Hardship Exemption, you must also comply with the following 

sections of the Michigan Compiled Laws: 

Section 211.116 Perjury: Any person who, under any of the proceedings required or 

permitted by this act, shall willfully swear falsely, will be guilty of perjury and subject to 

its penalties. 

If received timely, your application will be presented at the next scheduled Board of Review. 

 

 

Your attendance at the appropriate meeting is strongly encouraged but is 

not required.  The Board of Review may have questions for you 

regarding your application or documentation.  Please be aware that the 

Board of Review MUST conduct their meetings according to the  

Open Meetings Act. 
 



































 

Van Buren Conservation District 
January 2026 Program Update 

​                                 Submitted by Emilly Hickmott, Executive Director 
 
 
Happy New Year! The Van Buren Conservation District (VBCD) Board & Staff hope you had a great 
end of the year and that 2026 is off to a great start already. We look forward to working with you to 
provide conservation assistance and services in Van Buren County this year. Reach out anytime - 
staff-specific contact information is available at VanBurenCD.org/about. Our full board reports 
can be found on our website as well. 

Did you know? Each spring, most Michigan conservation districts (including the VBCD) conduct a 
conservation plant sale to offer a variety of high-quality, native seedlings, plugs, flowers and 
grasses, for erosion control, wildlife habitat, reforestation, windbreaks, and many other 
conservation purposes. Varieties generally include shrubs, deciduous and coniferous trees, and 
sometimes aquatic plants, grasses, ground covers, and wildflowers.  

The VBCD’s annual Tree Seedling Sale begins accepting pre-orders on January 1, and this year, 
we’re accepting them through March 29. After that, all pre-orders should be picked up during our 
leftover sale and pickup days: April 10 and April 11.  

Pre-orders are a great way to make sure you have access to all of the species we’re selling that 
you might want to improve your land with. If you’re not sure where to start, you can check out the 
chart on each species’ webpage or contact us for more information. Help us build wildlife habitat 
and beautify your space in 2026 by considering native and adapted species. 
https://vanburencd.org/shop/  

Upcoming Events (Details available on our website): 

●​ Office Closed for the Birthday of Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. | January 19 
●​ Staff Training | The Stewardship Network Conference | January 22-23  
●​ VBCD Board Meeting | January 28 at 10:00 AM | 1035 E Michigan Ave., Paw Paw 
●​ Discover with the District: Winter Wildlife | February 2 at 5:00 PM | Van Buren District Library 

Bloomingdale Branch | 109 E Kalamazoo St., Bloomingdale | registration preferred 
●​ SWxSW Corner Cooperative Invasive Species Management Area (CISMA) Annual Meeting | 

February 11 at 10:00 AM | Van Buren ISD Conference Center | 490 S Paw Paw St., Lawrence 
●​ Birds and Blooms Family Event | February 14 at 10:00 AM | Wolf Lake State Fish Hatchery | 

34270 CR 652, Mattawan 
●​ Office Closed for Washington’s Birthday | February 16 
●​ Staff Training | Michigan Invasive Species Conference (MISC) Annual Meeting | February 

18-19 

 
 

1035 E. Michigan Avenue, Paw Paw, Michigan 49079 
269.657.4030 x5  ⬥  www.VanBurenCD.org ⬥ info@vanburencd.org 

http://vanburencd.org/about
https://vanburencd.org/shop/
http://www.vanburencd.org
http://www.vanburencd.org


 

Van Buren Conservation District 
January 2026 Program Update 

​                                 Submitted by Emilly Hickmott, Executive Director 
 
 
Program Updates: 

●​ Ag Conservation/Water Quality Projects (Erin Fuller and Colleen Forestieri) - The Ag and 
Water Quality team focused on planning outreach and education events for 2026. This 
includes finding speakers as well as sponsors and grants to support these events. We look 
forward to hosting a conference for local farmers as well as field days and small grower 
meetings in the coming year. The team also worked with farmers on completing contracts 
for cost-share for post-harvest cover crops. 

●​ SWxSW Corner CISMA (Cooperative Invasive Species Management Area) Team (Abbie 
Bristol, Alex Florian, Jena Johnson) - The CISMA Team was able to take a breath and focus 
more on the tasks we set aside in October while grant-writing. As we finish up reporting on 
our last year of work, we’re looking ahead to make 2026 a year that is fully funded with 
diverse opportunities. Everything from large federal grants to state grants to new and 
recurring partner contracts, the CISMA Team is hard at work making 2026 a successful year. 

●​ Michigan Agriculture Environmental Assurance Program (MAEAP) and Regen Ag 
Program (Kyle Mead) - The specialist worked to visit farmers between snowstorms to be 
able to see and access what happens at farms. He also scheduled with the Michigan 
Department of Agriculture & Rural Development’s (MDARD) MAEAP Verifier for two full days 
of program verification on farms in January.  

●​ MDARD Forestry Assistance Program (FAP): (Benjamin Savoie, CF of Barry Conservation 
District) - Ben will begin covering Van Buren County as part of the program’s expansion 
from three counties to nine. We look forward to working with Ben to organize site visits and 
enroll interested landowners in the State’s Qualified Forest Program. If you have any 
questions, contact Ben at (269) 908-4134 ben.savoie@macd.org  

●​ National Association of Conservation Districts (NRCS) Technical Assistance (Lucas 
Hartman, Gabriel Francisco) - The technicians conducted farm visits and site evaluations 
to support existing CSP and EQIP participants, as well as assisted prospective 2025–2026 
EQIP applicants with preparing required documentation in anticipation of application 
availability.  

●​ Outreach (Jacob Diljak) - While conservation may look “sleepy” right now, we’re building a 
year of public engagement, events, support, and sharing local stories. You’ll want to stay 
tuned for programs, material (like our annual report and local guide), and the many ways 
we get involved in our community.  

●​ Resource Recovery & Recycling (Kalli Marshall, Jacob Diljak) - Kalli has nearly finished 
reporting for the EGLE Infrastructure grant that improved many transfer stations. Work 
included further forward movement on Materials Management Planning, data collection 
and showcasing, and prepping/ planning for collections and events in the 2026 season. 

1035 E. Michigan Avenue, Paw Paw, Michigan 49079 
269.657.4030 x5  ⬥  www.VanBurenCD.org ⬥ info@vanburencd.org 

mailto:ben.savoie@macd.org
http://www.vanburencd.org

	January Agenda
	Dec 2025 Minutes
	Resolution 26-01 to Approve Lighthouse Ridge Apt Site Plan and Introduce Ordinance(202289581.3)
	2026 South Haven Twp Hardship Application and resolution 26-02 Form
	Budget Amendment Resolution 26-03 for 12-31-2025
	Site Plan and Special Use Recommendation for PC
	MTS Permits Report
	PC December Minutes
	Treasurer's Report
	VBCD_January_2026_Programs_Report

